From: Molly Martins

To: Margaret Hoffman

Cc: Molly Martins

Subject: The Academy at Penguin Hall

Date: Thursday, August 19, 2021 7:10:25 PM
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Dear Margaret and Members of the Zoning Board of Appeals,

As you may recall in February of 2016 I presented to the ZBA a request for a determination
that the property at 36 Essex Street meet the requirements as an exempt use under the Dover
Amendment. This exemption was granted with the requirement that any future construction,
exterior alteration or exterior expansion would be subject to further site plan review. Based on
this determination and other required documentation, the Building Inspector approved the
change in use from Office to School. Since our opening we have not expanded the facility nor
have we made any exterior renovations. All renovation work that has been to the interior of
the building to convert the use from office to educational.

As part of our educational program growth we are adding a Weekday Boarding Program. This
program began as a request from our families, especially those who are travelling a substantial
distance to attend The Academy at Penguin Hall. The program is designed to support students
Monday thru Friday so that their commuting time on a daily basis can be reduced.

As required by the Wenham Zoning By-law Section 255-13.7 The Academy at Penguin Hall is
requesting a site plan review by the ZBA to present the additional use (Residential-2) which is
consistent with Dover Amendment Uses. There will be no exterior alterations or expansion.
Only minor interior renovations, similar to other work that has been completed in the building
will be done.

[ have attached a copy of the site plan for the property along with a plan of the interior
renovations to be completed.

I look forward to reviewing the plans and the program at the meeting on Monday August 23,
2021. Thank you in advance for your consideration. If you require any addition information
prior to the meeting, do not hesitate to contact me.

Respectfully,

Molly

Molly Martins
President

The Academy at Penguin Hall
36 Essex Street
Wenham, MA 01984
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The fland in Wenham, Essex County, described as follows (Reference is also made to o
drawing of property at 20 Essex Streel, Wenham, MA 01984, formerly a single parcel
belonging to John A. Gray, now divided in Lots 7 and 2 (the “Drawing”) filed with the
Lssex South Registry of Deeds on September 16, 2002, as Plan Book 362 Plan 18).
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Code Summary

BUILDING CODE ANALYSIS
Applicable Building Codes

Building Code: International Building Code — 2015 w/ Massachusetts Amendments
Modifications (IBC) — 9th Edition

Existing Building Code International Existing Building Code— 2015 w/ Massachusetts
Amendments Modifications (IEBC)

Accessibility Code: 529 CMR Architectural Access Board Regulations (AAB)

Life Safety Code: Latest Edition: Massachusetts State Fire Code

Electrical/ Plumbing Codes: Massachusetts State Codes

2015 IEBC

Description of Work

The project generally consists of the conversion of unused area within an existing
educational use (Use Group E) to a conversion into limited dormitory rooms (Use Group
R-2). Please note that the entire building went through a change of occupancy from
business use (Use Group B) to Use Group E, however prior use of the building was Use

Group R-2 prior to this renovation.

Section 110: Altered areas of a building and relocated buildings shall not be used or
occupied, and change in the existing use or occupancy classification of a building or
portion thereof shall not be made until the code official
<https://up.codes/viewer/utah/iebc—2015/chapter/2/definitions#code_official> has issued

a certificate of occupancy therefor as provided herein. Issuance of a certificate of
occupancy shall not be construed as an approval of a violation of the provisions of this

code or of other ordinances of the jurisdiction.

A new occupancy permit for the change of occupancy portion of the building will be issued

by the local code official

Chapter 5 and Chapter 8
Proposed improvements classify as Level 2 Alternations, with all new construction meeting
the requirements of the 9th Edition of the Building Code — 2015 IBC. All new building

systems shall meet these requirements.

Section 803.4 — Interior Finishes: All new finishes shall meet the requirements of the 9th
Edition of the State Building Code 2015 IBC.

Chapter 10

Change of Occupancy

The building holds a current occupancy permit and the proposed use group is a change of
occupancy from the former tenant Use Group E to Use Group R—1 in the affected building
space. This change in occupancy requires the issuance of a building and final occupancy

permit.

Section 1012 Change in Occupancy: Under Section 1012.1 — General a change of
occupancy classification requires compliance to sections 1002 through 1011 previously
sited in this code analysis.

Section 1012.1.2 - Fire Protection & Interior Finish: the provision of Sections 912.2 -
Fire Protection System and 1012.2 Interior Finish shall apply to all building undergoing a
change of occupancy classification. With respect to compliance to 1012.2 a registered fire
protection engineer shall provide an evaluation of the existing fire suppression system.
Section 1012.3 — Interior Finish areas of the building undergoing a change of occupancy
classification, the interior finish of walls and ceilings shall comply with the requirements of
the International Building Code for new occupancy classification. There are no anticipated
areas of concern meeting the new requirements for the IBC.

Section 1012.4 — Means of Egress Hazard Categories: in regards to life safety and means
of egress shall be in accordance of Table 912.4

Table 1012.4 Means of Egress Hazard Categories — Applicable Sections Relative Hazard (1
- Highest Hazard)Occupancy Classification3Use Group E Former Use2Use Group R-2
Proposed Use

The tenant spaces former use occupancy was Business — “E” use group under the prior
Change of Use Group. This is classified in Table 1012.4 — Means of Egress Hazard
Categories as a Hazard Index of “3”. The change in occupancy will now classify the
relative hazard category to 2 representing a higher hazard classification.

Section 1012.4.1: When a change of occupancy
<https://up.codes/viewer/utah/iebc—2015/chapter/2/definitions#change_of occupancy>

classification is made to a higher hazard category (lower number) as shown in Table 1012.4
<https://up.codes/viewer/utah/iebc—2015/chapter/10/change—of-occupancy#table 1012.4>

, the means of egress shall comply with the requirements of Chapter 10
<https://up.codes/viewer/utah/ibc—2015/chapter/10/means—of—egress#10> of the

International Building Code <https.//up.codes/viewer,/ utah/ibc=2015).

1012.8.1 Partial Change in Occupancy: Where a portion of the building is changed to a new
occupancy classification, any alteration

<https.//up.codes/viewer/ utah/iebc=2015/chapter,/2/definitions#alteration”> shall comply

with Sections 705
<https://up.codes/viewer/utah/iebc—2015/chapter/7/alterations—level-1#705>, 806

<https://up.codes/viewer/utah/iebc—2015/chapter/8/alterations—level-2#806> and 906

<https://up.codes/viewer/utah/iebc—2015/chapter/9/alterations—level-3#906>, as

applicable.

All Electrical, Plumbing, HVAC, and Fire Protection to be performed Design/Build by
others. No Structural work is anticipated, however, should structural work be required,
the Owner shall obtain a qualified Massachusetts registered professional engineer to
determine the requirements thereof and provide and submit stamped document to Building

Department.
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Section 305: Existing Use Group E

Section 310 Proposed Partial Third Floor Use Group: Use Group R-2 (Section 310.4)

Section 304: A ? hour fire separation is required between all sleeping units if the building

is equipped with a fire suppression system

Table 508 Mixed Use & Occupancy: A 1— hour fire separation of is required between

occupancies as the building is below the threshold per Table 508.4. if the building is

equipped with a fire suppression system. Separation shall be both vertical and horizontal

Section 602 and Table 6071

Construction Type: —1A Noncombustible Protected — Primary Use Group: E (Educational

— Educational

Section 602 and Table 602 - Construction Classification

1962 and 1998 Additions — Type II A Non Combustible Construction Unprotected at floors,

Type IIIB Non Combustible Exterior Walls/ Combustible Unprotected at roof construction.

Fire Sprinkler: Building is fully sprinklered with Existing System — Existing system to be

modified at affected areas as determined by design/build fire protection contract.

Section 1004 & Table 1004.1.1
Tenant Area: 2,498 affected gross sq. ft. — Third Floor

Required Occupant Load: Dormitories : 50/ g.s.f.
Total Occupant Load: 50 = 2,498 sf./ 50 g.sf.

Section 1006
Number of Egress Required:
For Occupancy (7able 1006.2.1) = 2 Egress required. 2 Provided

Section 1008
Exit Doors: 32" Clear (36" Nominal)

Doors may swing into space (less than 50 occupants) per space

Section 10714.3
Common Path of Travel: Max Allowed= 100’, Max Provided = Less than 100

Aisle Width for Means of Egress Element (7073.4.7): 36~ Min in public areas/ 28" Min in

nonpublic areas.

Section 1016 & Table 10716.1
Maximum Travel Distance Max Allowed=300’, Max Provided= Less than 300’

Section 1018 — Table 10718.1

Corridors:

Fire Resistance Rating Required (7076.1): 0 — fully sprinklered building

Width (7078, 2): 36" Min — However, additional width at all new doors will be required to

comply with maneuvering clearance requirements of 521 CMR.

521 CMR:

Existing Buildings (3.3): Less than 30% Building Value and less $100,000, requires all new
work to comply with 521 CMR. No additional work is required in the building based upon

this threshold.
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Consultant:

These CADD documents are recorded on, or can be transmitted as, electronic
media. They are therefore subject to undetectable alteration or erasure, either
intentional or unintentional, due to, among other causes: transmission,
conversion, media degradation, software error, or human alteration.
Accordingly, Luna Design Group, Inc., shall not be held liable for any claims,
losses, damages, or costs arising out of any such alteration or unauthorized
re-use or modification of these CADD documents.
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